
 

 
There will be a Regular Meeting of the Monroe 2-Orleans Board of Cooperative Educational Services 
on Wednesday, November 15, 2023, at 5:00 pm at the Richard E. TenHaken Educational Services 
Center, 3599 Big Ridge Road, Spencerport, NY 14559  
 

Anticipated Executive Session immediately following the regular board meeting to discuss the 
employment history of a particular person(s). 
 

BOARD MEMBERS  
Dennis Laba, President Trina Lorentz 
R. Charles Phillips, Vice President Gerald Maar 
John Abbott Michael May 
Cindy Dawson Heather Pyke 
Kathleen Dillon 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Call the Meeting to Order 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Agenda Item(s) Modifications  
 

4. Approval of Minutes: October 18, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

5. Public Interaction 
 

6. Financial Reports 
1. Resolution to Accept Treasurer’s Report 
2. Resolution to Accept WinCap Reports 
3.  Resolution to Accept Quarterly Extra Classroom Report 
4. Internal Claims Exception Log 
5. 23-24 Annual Grant Summary Review 

 
7. Audit Committee 

1. Resolution to Approve the Minutes of the October 18, 2023 Audit Committee Meeting 
 
 

8. Board Presentation – Preschool Program and Budget Update, Interim Director of Exceptional 
Children Joseph Kelly, Special Education Supervisor Heather Malone, and Assistant School 
Business Official Gary Manuse 

 

9. Old Business – Questions on the Public Inter-district Schools Report  
 
10.  New Business 

1.  Resolution to Accept Donation of Autobody Parts from Wilbert’s Family Enterprises 
2. Resolution to Approve Revision to the Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES Organizational Chart 
   

 

BOARD OF COOPERATIVE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES 
SECOND SUPERVISORY DISTRICT COUNTIES OF  
MONROE AND ORLEANS 



November 15, 2023 Regular Board Meeting 

     Page 2 of 2 

11. Personnel and Staffing
1. Resolution to Approve Personnel and Staffing Agenda
2. Resolution to Certify Lead Evaluator of Teachers

12. Bids/Lease Purchases
1. Resolution to Accept Toyota Forklift Truck 2023 or Newer Bid
2. Resolution to Accept Ford E-350 Cab and Cutaway Chassis 2023 or Newer Bid

13. Executive Officer’s Reports
1. Albany D.S. Report
2. Local Update

14. Committee Reports
1. Labor Relations Committee
2. Legislative Committee
3. Information Exchange

15. Upcoming Meetings/Calendar Events

Nov 10 Veterans’ Day Holiday – BOCES Closed 
Nov 15 Noon MCSBA Labor Relations Committee – (DoubleTree) 

4:30 pm Board Portraits/Group photo (ESC/PDC4) 
5:00 pm Board Meeting (ESC, Board Room) 
6:00 pm Board Development Session with Cabinet (ESC/PDC4) 

Nov 16 6:00 pm CTE Expo - WEMOCO 
Nov 18 6:00 pm Monroe 2-Orleans Educational Foundation Celebration (RCC) 
Nov 22-24 Thanksgiving Holiday – BOCES Closed 
Nov 28 6:00 pm National Technical Honor Society Induction Ceremony (ESC- 

PDC 1&2) 
Nov 29 Noon MCSBA Legislative Committee Meeting (DoubleTree) 

5:45 pm MCSBA Executive Committee Meeting (Monroe’s – Ridgemont) 
Nov 30 3:30 pm Celebrating You! Employee Recognition Event (ESC – PDC) 
Dec 14  Noon Board Officer Agenda Review (RCC)  
Dec20 6:00 pm Board Meeting (ESC, Board Room) 

16. Other Items

17. Executive Session

18. Adjournment



1. Call the Meeting to Order



2. Pledge of Allegiance



3. Agenda Item(s) Modifications



4. Approval of Minutes: October 18, 2023 Regular Meeting
Minutes



MINUTES 
of the Regular Meeting held on Wednesday, October 18, at 6:00 p.m. at the Richard E. Ten Haken 
Educational Services Center, Spencerport, New York 14559. 

Members Present 
Dennis Laba, President Trina Lorentz 
R. Charles Phillips, Vice President Gerry Maar 
John Abbott
Cindy Dawson

Michael May 
Hearther Pyke 

Kathleen Dillon

Staff Present 
Jo Anne Antonacci Marijo Pearson 
Karen Brown Linda Rice 
Stephen Dawe Steve Roland 
Ian Hildreth Tom Schulte  

1. The meeting was called to order by President Laba at 6:00 pm.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Agenda Modification - There were no agenda modifications

4. Approval of Minutes
Resolved: To Approve the Minutes of the September 27, 2023 Regular Meeting
Moved by J. Abbott, seconded by M. May; passed unanimously

5. There was no public interaction

6. Financial Reports
Resolved: To Accept the Treasurer’s Report as presented
Moved by K. Dillon, seconded by J. Abbott ; passed unanimously

Resolved:  To Accept the WinCap Reports as presented
Moved by C. Phillips, seconded by K. Dillon ; passed unanimously

7. Board Presentation – Tom Zuber from Mengel, Metzger, Barr, CPA. reviewed Monroe2-
Orleans BOCES 2022-23 audit. Mr. Zuber left the meeting at 6:09 p.m.

1. Resolved: To Accept the Audit Report entitled Basic Financial Statement 
for Year Ended June 30, 2023. 

 Moved by M. May; seconded by G. Maar; passed unanimously 

2. Resolved: To Accept the Management Letter for Year Ended June 30, 2023 
Moved by M. May; seconded by G. Maar; passed unanimously 

BOARD OF COOPERATIVE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES 
SECOND SUPERVISORY DISTRICT COUNTIES OF 

MONROE AND ORLEANS



October 18, 2023 Meeting Minutes    Page 2 of 6 

3. Resolved: To Accept Corrective Action Plan for the Year Ended June 30, 2023 
Moved by M. May; seconded by G. Maar; passed unanimously 

8. Old Business
1. Whereas, on or about October 20, 2021,  the Board passed a resolution authorizing

litigation against Altria Group, Inc. and Philip Morris USA, Inc., Altria Client Services LLC,
Altria Enterprises LLC, and Altria Group Distribution Company (collectively “Altria”); and

Whereas, the parties have reached a settlement of this litigation in the amount of
$16,062.00 (less disbursements and fees).

Now therefore be it resolved, that the Board approves the settlement of the Altria
litigation in the amount of $16,062.00 (less disbursements and fees) and authorizes the
Superintendent to execute any settlement documents on behalf of the Board.

Moved by  K. Dillon; seconded by J. Abbott; passed unanimously

9. Recognition of School Board Members

10. New Business
1. Resolved: To Accept Corrective Action Plan for the Results of Testing Report for 

the Year Ending June 30, 2023 
Moved by M. May, seconded by K. Dillon; passed unanimously 

2. Resolved: Resolution to Approve 2023-2025 Academic Intervention Services Plan 
Moved by G. Maar, seconded by J. Abbott; passed unanimously 

3. Resolved: Resolution to Accept Donation of Columbia Cabinets from VP Supply 
Moved by K. Dillon, seconded by M. May; passed unanimously 

4. Assistant Superintendent for Instructional Programs Tom Schulte provide the annual
Regional Summer School and Extended School Year Report. The board asked
questions and thanked Tom for the update.

11. Personnel and Staffing
1. Resolved: To Approve the Personnel and Staffing Agenda as presented 

Moved by C. Phillips, seconded by G. Maar ; passed unanimously 

2. Resolved: To Approve the Substitute Pay Rates
Moved by G. Maar, seconded by K. Dillon; passed unanimously

12. Executive Officer’s Report

District Superintendent Jo Anne Antonacci, together with Assistant Superintendents Dr.
Marijo Pearson and Tom Schulte attended the New York State Council of School
Superintendents in Saratoga October 1-3, 2023.

The Inclusivity Action Community met this week and rolled out the 2023-24 work plan.



October 18, 2023 Meeting Minutes    Page 3 of 6 

A BOCES team attended the Standard Reunification Method Training presented by the I Love 
You Guys Foundation. A plan will be developed for our BOCES. 

CTE Students are scheduled to be on-site at Springdale by the end of the month.  Efforts 
continue to identify space options for various programs; BOCES is engaged in an enrollment 
study to assist with short- and long-term planning. 

ACT for Education webcasts are starting back up.  Jo Anne will be facilitating the October 
session on Family Engagement. 

Monroe 2 Orleans BOCES received a Supervisory District survey.  Upon the retirement of a 
District Superintendent, the Supervisory District and those contiguous are surveyed to 
determine whether any redistricting might be made that would better serve the educational 
needs of the district.  

Holiday events that benefit students and families will begin soon. The Kiwanis Toy Drive, The 
Fall Food Drive and Holiday Connections information will be going out to the board and staff 
next week. Jo Anne reminded the board of the Educational Foundation Celebration taking 
place at Ridgemont Country Club on Saturday, November 18. This fundraiser provides 
scholarships and awards to BOCES 2 students. 

13. Committee Reports
Labor Relations Committee – J. Abbott, K. Dillon

Legislative Committee – K. Dillon, C. Dawson

Information Exchange – C. Dawson, C. Phillips

14. Upcoming Meetings/Calendar Events – the various meetings for the month were listed in the
agenda 

15. Other Items -

16. At  6:58  p.m. a motion was made by M. May to adjourn to executive session; seconded by
J. Abbott; passed unanimously

Respectfully Submitted 

Linda Rice 
Alternate Clerk of the Board 



October 18, 2023 Meeting Minutes    Page 4 of 6 

Members Present 
Dennis Laba Trina Lorentz 
R. Charles Phillips Gerald Maar 
John Abbott Michael May 

Cindy Dawson Heather Pyke 
Kathleen Dillon

At 7:23 p.m. a motion was made by  K. Dillon, seconded by M. May to come out of Executive 
Session; passed unanimously. 

17. Adjournment
At 7:23 p.m. a motion was made by  K. Dillon to adjourn the meeting, seconded by J. Abbott;
passed unanimously.

Respectfully Submitted,

Jo Anne L. Antonacci 
Clerk Pro Tem 



5. Public Interaction



6. Financial Reports
1. Resolution to Accept Treasurer’s Report
2. Resolution to Accept WinCap Reports
3. Resolution to Accept Quarterly Extra Classroom Report
4. Internal Claims Exception Log
5. 22-23 Annual Grant Summary Review

























 

 

 

7.  Audit Committee 

1.  Resolution to Approve October 18, 2023 Audit Committee 

Meeting Minutes  





8. Board Presentation – Preschool Program and Budget Update,
Interim Director of Exceptional Children Joseph Kelly, Special
Education Supervisor Heather Malone, and Assistant School
Business Official Gary Manuse



Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES
Preschool

November 15, 2023



Integrated
Gates Neil Armstrong
Greece Early Learning Center
Greece English Village
Hilton Village
Spencerport Bernabi
Spencerport Early Learning Center 

• 67 students with disabilities
• 66 general education students



8:1+3 Self-Contained 
• Two classrooms at Greece English Village
• Three classrooms at Exceptional Children Learning
Center

• Currently servicing 40 students in the 8:1+3 program



Family Supports
• Family trainings

• AAC and Speech
• Sensory
• Autism

• Related service family newsletter
• Collaboration with OPWDD
• Open house



Northeast AAC Summit

• Preschool featured in the Northeast AAC Summit. Focus
on language, literacy and learners in a preschool
environment.



• Describe how the previous instructional preschool
philosophy and focus, has adjusted to accommodate
AAC and literacy learners

• Describe the emergent literacy routines present in
the preschool classroom

• Describe key strategies for the implementation of AAC
and literacy routines within the preschool classroom



LITERACY-LANGUAGE RICH 
LEARNING

7

CLASSROOM 
ENVIRONMENT

Added emergent 
literacy practices 
during explicit 

teaching times and 
across learning 
opportunities

TEACHER 
ORCHESTRATED 
INSTRUCTION 

 Teacher directs adult 
learners to 

accommodate 
student learning

ROBUST 
LANGUAGE

Robust AAC is 
provided as 

instructional support 
and dedicated 

language support for 
ALL

STAFF

Awareness, 
acknowledgment  an

d support of all 
learning and 

communication 
attempts

SYSTEMS
PROCEDURES

Trial process for 
dedicated systems

Procedures for 
modeling devices

Literacy Resources



SUMMARY

8

CO-TEACHING/TEAM

• We are always referencing
concepts taught across
environments

• Language is emersed and at
the focus of what we do
with literacy

• Better for continuity of
instruction

STRATEGIES OF 
INTEGRATING AAC AND 

LITERACY

• Letter of the day/word of
the day

• Predictive chart writing
• Independent reading
• Independent writing
• Shared reading

PRESUME COMPETENCE

• Students can and will learn
• Assume students can

understand language and
teaching

• Model, model, MODEL
• Kids need repetition
• Build connection



Northeast AAC Summit

•



Preschool Budget
Fund Balance June 2022: -$979,010
2022/23 Deficit: -$185,190
Fund Balance June 2023: -$1,164,200

Estimated 2023/24 Deficit: -$520,145
Recoveries from 2015/16 & 2016/17 Waivers: $300,552
Estimated Fund Balance June 2024: -$1,383,793

Estimated Future Recoveries: $1,162,225 
Estimated Unallocated IDEA Funds: $203,924
Estimated Adjusted Fund Balance: -$17,644

2023/24 Budget: $4,988,740





9. Old Business - Questions on the Public Inter-district Schools
Report 



10. New Business
1. Resolution to Accept Donation of Autobody Parts from

Wilbert’s Family Enterprises





10. New Business
2. Resolution to Approve Revision to the Monroe 2-

Orleans BOCES Organizational Chart



POLICY NUMBER RATIONALE

3211
Organizational Chart Changes made to reflect current administrative structure.

AD HOC POLICY UPDATE CHART

Organizational Chart
(November Board Review)



Page 1 of 1 
Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES Policy 
Series 3000 – Administration 
Policy #3211 – ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 

The administrative structure of BOCES is contained on the following page. 

Any changes in the administrative structure shall be subject to approval by the Board. 

Adopted:  7/13/99 
Revised: 11/17/2010 
Revised: 9/18/2013 
Revised: 11/19/2014 
Revised: 8/19/2015 
Revised: 9/21/2016 
Revised: 8/21/2019 
Revised: 4/01/2020 
Revised: 8/18/2021 
Revised: 9/21/2022 
Revised: 11/15/2023 



State Education Department;
Commissioner of Education

Assistant  
Superintendent for 

Finance and Operations

Business
Operations

Human Resources
Operations

Health Plan 
Consortiums

Workers
Comp.

COSER
Supervision

Purchasing

Capital
Projects

Community
Schools

Facility/Lease
Management

Assistant  
Superintendent for 
Human Resources

Assistant Superintendent for 
Accountability, Assessment  

and Technology

Monroe/Orleans 
Accountability, 
Assessment 

and Reporting 
Services

(M.A.A.R.S.)

Communication 
and Technology

Services

Special 
Projects

Assistant  
Superintendent for 

Instructional Programs

Career & 
Technical
Education

Center for 
Workforce

Development

Westside
Academy

NYSED & 
District Supt. 

Initiatives

Regional Summer
School

Exceptional
Children

Special
Education

English 
Language 
Learners

Statewide
Center for 

School Health

School
Improvement

Co-Ser

Regional 
Bilingual 
Education 
Resource 
Network 
(RBE-RN)

Regional Adult 
Education Network 

(RAEN)

Reading
Recovery

Grant
Writing

Staff/Curriculum 
Development 

Network (S/CDN)

NYSED & 
District Supt. 

Initiatives

BOCES 4 
Science 
Program

Assistant Superintendent for 
Curriculum, Instruction, and 
Professional Development

School
Investigators

Superintendent’s 
Disciplinary 

Hearings

Labor Relations

Monroe 2–Orleans Board of Cooperative Educational Services
Organizational Chart

Revised: 11/2023 

Safety and 
Security

Operations 
and 

Maintenance

NYSED & 
District Supt. 

Initiatives

NYSED & 
District Supt. 

Initiatives

District Superintendent and
Chief Executive Officer

Board Of Cooperative Educational Services

Required Board Officers and other 
annual appointments as listed at 

 the reorganizational meeting

Payroll

Benefits

Online Web 
Recruitment

Shared HR
Manager

NYSED & 
District Supt. 

Initiatives



11. Personnel and Staffing
1. Resolution to Approve Personnel and Staffing Agenda



11. Personnel and Staffing
2. Resolution to Certify Lead Evaluator of Teachers



RESOLUTION TO CERTIFY LEAD EVALUATOR OF TEACHERS 

WHEREAS, the BOCES Board has been provided evidence that the following individuals have 
completed training which meets the requirements of 8 NYCRR 30-2.10 and the Monroe 2-
Orleans BOCES 2023-2024 State-approved Annual Professional Performance Review Plan for 
certification as a Lead Evaluator of teachers, therefore 

BE IT RESOLVED, that, upon recommendation of the District Superintendent, the following 
individuals be certified as a Lead Evaluator of teachers: 

Erin Oliveri  

Leslie Tanner  

David Thering 



12. Bids/Lease Purchases
1. Resolution to Accept Toyota Forklift Truck 2023 or Newer

Bid
2. Resolution to Accept Ford E-350 Cab and Cutaway Chassis

2023 or Newer Bid



BOARD OF COOPERATIVE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES 
Second Supervisory District of Monroe and Orleans Counties 

3599 Big Ridge Road, Spencerport, NY  14559 

BID RECOMMENDATION 

TOYOTA FORKLIFT TRUCK 2023 or NEWER 

Bid #RFB-2079-23 

The following bid was opened on October 31, 2023, at 2:00 p.m.  My recommendation for the 
award of this bid is as follows: 

Awarded Vendor:    Toyota Lift Northeast. $37,833.00 

• Bids obtained - 9
• Bids returned - 3

BID ANALYSIS 

The bid for the Toyota Forklift Truck has been recommended for award to the lowest responsive 
and responsible bidder that met all the required bid specifications.  The equipment will be used by 
the O&M Department.   

Funds to be provided from the 2023-2024 budget. 

November 7, 2023 
Date Director of Procurement 



BOARD OF COOPERATIVE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES 
Second Supervisory District of Monroe and Orleans Counties 

3599 Big Ridge Road, Spencerport, NY  14559 

BID RECOMMENDATION 

FORD E-350 CAB AND CUTAWAY CHASSIS 2023 or NEWER 

Bid #RFB-2080-23 

The following bid was opened on November 3, 2023, at 2:00 p.m.  My recommendation for the 
award of this bid is as follows: 

Awarded Vendor:    Van Bortel Ford, Inc. $67,750.00 

• Bids obtained - 7
• Bids returned - 1

BID ANALYSIS 

The bid for the Ford E-350 Cab and Cutaway Chassis has been recommended for award to the 
lowest responsive and responsible bidder that met all the required bid specifications.  The 
equipment will be used by the BOCES 4 Science Department.   

Funds to be provided from the 2023-2024 budget. 

November 7, 2023 
Date Director of Procurement 



13. Executive Officer’s Reports
1. Albany D.S. Report
2. Local Update



14. Committee Reports
1. Labor Relations Committee
2. Legislative Committee
3. Information Exchange



15. Upcoming Meetings/Calendar Events

Nov 10 

Nov 14 6:30 pm
Nov 15 Noon 

Veterans’ Day Holiday – BOCES Closed

Gates Chili BOE Meeting (1 Spartan Way) 
MCSBA Labor Relations Committee (DoubleTree) 

4:30 pm Board Portraits/Group photo (ESC/PDC4) 
5:00 pm Board Meeting (ESC, Board Room) 
6:00 pm Board Development Session with Cabinet 

(ESC/PDC4) 
Nov 16 6:00 pm CTE Expo - WEMOCO 
Nov 18 6:00 pm Monroe 2-Orleans Educational Foundation 

Celebration (RCC)  
Nov 22-24 Thanksgiving Holiday – BOCES Closed 
Nov 28 6:00 pm National Technical Honor Society Induction 

Ceremony (ESC-PDC 1&2) 
Nov 29 Noon MCSBA Legislative Committee Meeting 

(DoubleTree) 
5:45 pm MCSBA Executive Committee Meeting 

(Monroe’s – Ridgemont) 
Nov 30 3:30 pm Celebrating You! Employee Recognition 

Event (ESC – PDC) 
Dec 14 Noon Board Officer Agenda Review (RCC)  
Dec20 6:00 pm Board Meeting (ESC, Board Room) 



16. Other Items



17. Executive Session



18. Adjournment


	11-15-2023 AGENDA
	1. CALL TO ORDER
	2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	3. AGENDA MODIFICATIONS
	4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	5. PUBLIC INTERACTION
	6. FINANCIAL REPORTS
	7. AUDIT COMMITTEE
	8. BOARD PRESENTATION
	9. OLD BUSINESS
	10. NEW BUSINESS
	10.1 RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT DONATION FROM WILBERT'S FAMILY ENTERPRISES
	10.2 RESOLUTION TO APPROVE REVIONS TO THE MONROE 2-ORLEANS BOCES ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

	11. PERSONNEL AND STAFFING
	11.1 RESOLUTION TO APPROVE PERSONNEL AND STAFFING AGENDA
	11.2 RESOLUTION TO CERTIFY LEAD EVALUATOR OF TEACHERS

	12. BIDS/LEASE PURCHASES
	13. EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT
	14. COMMITTEE REPORTS
	15. UPCOMING MEETINGS/EVENTS
	16. OTHER ITEMS
	17. EXECUTIVE SESSION
	18. ADJOURNMENT



